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This addendum is issued to clarify questions received by the Hampton Roads Planning District 
Commission (HRPDC) pertaining to Request for Proposal (RFP) No. PDC-RFP-2020-03. 
 
1) What is the estimated construction cost? 

Not available 
 

2) Are union bids required? 
No. 
 

3) Would you be open to installing wells next to the roadway to monitoring the groundwater 
level if this was a less expensive alternative solution or are you only interested in 
monitoring the water level on the road surface?  
We are only interested in monitoring the water level on the road surface. 
 

4) I see that the question submittal period is only open until May 21st.  Is there any chance that 
the question/answer period can be extended? 
We would like to maintain the current schedule. 
 

5) Would an extension of the submission deadline for proposals be considered, due to the 
effects of COVID-19?  At this time, most of our staff is working remotely, and we don’t have 
many people in the office to help support some of the efforts we will need to provide a 
complete proposal. 
We would like to maintain the current schedule. 
 

6) We would like to clarify which 20 sites (from the list of 200) have been selected to be 
included in this phase of the project, as each site may require a different hardware and 
sensor solution. 
The 20 sites have not been selected for the pilot. 
 

7) Can we know who is on the proposal reviewing committee? Internal staff and external 
reviewers? 
Reviewing committee will primarily be external local staff and academic partners along with 
two HRPDC staff. 
 

8) “Proposals are encouraged to consider integrating existing regional and municipal assets 
and partnerships such as the broadband ring, expansion of 5G cellular, and HRSD server 
capacity into the solution to minimize the cost.”  Can we have more specific details in terms 
of existing regional and municipal assets HRPDC would encourage leveraging in a final 
solution? If there is a specific priority asset that should be considered? 
These assets were mentioned in case a partnership would reduce the cost of the system. 
There is not a priority asset that should be considered. 
 



9) “Should there be conflicts between the proposal documents and the final contract, the final 
contract shall take precedence.”, Refer also to Section XI.D. and Attachment 3 Section H: 
What opportunities will Offerer have to review the final contract and its terms?  
The contract will be reviews by both parties before signing. 
 

10) “System may also include road signs that are activated to display flood warnings and flood 
alerts as text messages”.   

a. Does this sentence imply that road signs must have the capability to receive text 
messages, which are then displayed on the sign? No, the signs would activate based 
on sensor data indicating flooding. Applicant may propose signs that would light up 
or display messages. 

  
b. If so, is HRPDC, or the participating localities, currently using or procuring signs that 

meet this requirement?  No 
 

c. If so, can you provide a list of product(s) and their associated vendor(s)?  N/A 
 
11) The first paragraph states that “Sensors may use cellular, LoRaWan or other 

communications protocol…”  Can you elaborate on desired communication protocols other 
than cellular or LoRaWan?  No, the sentence was meant to allow for other options to be 
proposed. 

 
12) VDOT Safety Requirements Attachment 2, Technical Requirements, 1) Sensors 

The second paragraph states “Proposed mounting system should be compliant with Virginia 
Department of Transportation safety requirements”.  Can you provide a web link, or 
documentation in PDF form, for the specific VDOT safety requirements that apply to this 
project?  Neither VDOT nor localities have specific standards for flooding sensors.  However, 
the sensors and mounting systems would need to meet VDOT or locality requirements for 
signs or equipment in the right of way.    

 
13) DATA OWNERS Attachment 2, Technical Requirements, 2) Data Management 

The first sentence states “The sensor data will be owned by HRPDC and participating 
localities”.    Can you provide a list of participating localities? 
HRPDC member localities include Chesapeake, Franklin, Gloucester County, Hampton, Isle 
of Wight County, James City County, Newport News, Norfolk, Poquoson, Portsmouth, 
Smithfield, Southampton County, Suffolk, Surry, Virginia Beach, Williamsburg, and York 
County.   

 
14) PUBLIC HOSTING Attachment 2, Technical Requirements, 2) Data Management 

The second sentence states “Web services should be publicly hosted and exportable in real-
time…”   
Does this refer to web service applications or is this referring to publicly available web 
service APIs? The requirement is to provide web service layers publicly in real-time and 
doesn’t refer specifically to web service applications or APIs. 



 
 

15) DATUM SHIFTS Attachment 2, Technical Requirements, 2) Data Management 
second paragraph, first sentence - “Proposal should account for potential datum shifts over 
time and include a mechanism to ensure datum continuity”.  
While there are software configuration actions related to datum continuity, doe HRPDC also 
expect the vendor to perform surveys of the sensors as well?  (Surveys are required to 
determine the sensors elevation above sea level)   Or, will this task be undertaken by HRPDC 
and the participating localities? 
Vendors should include surveying the sensors in their proposals. 
 

16) ADVERTISING  Attachment 3 Section II.A  
“Contractor shall not state in any of its advertising or product literature that the 
organization or any department or agency of the organization has purchased or uses its 
services.”  In what cases is disclosure considered reasonable? For example, discussing 
successful use cases in smart city conferences, or providing examples of success to 
prospective clients. 
You can use the HRPDC as an example of past projects and as a reference but the HRPDC 
cannot be used in any advertising such as commercials, flyers, brochures etc. 
 

17) MAP DATA Attachment A: Map and Locations  -  May we have the locations in an electronic 
xlsx, kml or kmz file?.   
The xlsx format has been added to the website. 

 
18) May I get an estimated value and Plan Holder List for this project if available?  

Not available 
 
19) Will HRPDC provide existing road signs or do you expect the offeror to procure the road 

signs as part of the solution? Offeror would procure the road signs. 
 
a. If HRPDC will provide the road signs, can you provide the specific 

manufacturer/model number(s) and/or the interface specification for the signs? 
 

b. If the Offeror is to procure the road signs, can you provide requirements for the 
quantity of road signs?  20 
 

c. Do you expect each sensor install to have a corresponding road sign? No, the need 
for a sign will be site specific. 

 
  



20) The RFP encourages integration with existing HRSD server capacity. 
a.  Can you provide technical details regarding the services, configuration, and 

computing resources available within the existing HRSD server architecture? 
HRSD has a public facing ArcGIS Server and enterprise-level backend database 
supporting an HRPDC managed Open Data Portal. HRSD also has data historian 
capacity that may be available depending upon the proposed technical solution. 
Proposals involving the use of any HRSD capabilities will require coordination 
between the vendor, HRPDC, and HRSD. 
 

b. Is use of the HRSD server architecture preferred over a cloud-based approach? No 
preference. 

 
21) Why is there a minimum power requirement for the Solar Panel?  If our design can run a full 

capacity with a smaller panel, can it be used?   
It seemed reasonable. Yes 

 
22) Can you provide a reference to the specific Virginia Department of Transportation safety 

requirements for the sensor mounting system? Neither VDOT nor localities have specific 
standards for mounting sensors.  However, the sensors and mounting systems would need 
to meet VDOT or locality requirements for signs or equipment in the right of way.    

 
23) What are the mitigating factors requiring the Professional Liability Insurance 

requirement?  Specifically, why will a company’s general liability insurance not suffice? 
If your general liability insurance includes Bodily Injuries, Property Damage and covers 
$1,000,000 per incident and $2,000,000 aggregate then you don’t need Professional 
Liability Insurance. 
 

24) Attachment A lists 254 sensor locations. Attachment 2, paragraph 3 states that an initial 
phase of 20 sensors would be installed and future phases would be planned as funding is 
secured and a fully functional system is established:  

a) Can you define the Period of Performance (PoP) for the initial phase of 20 Sensors? 
No. 
 

b) Is it the intent of that during year one of the contract that there will be multiple 
phases with varying amounts and culminating with a total of 254 sensors at the end 
of year one?  First phase would be for 20 sensors and additional phases would be 
added as funds become available.  The first phase to install 20 sensors will be a pilot 
project. Additional sensors will be installed based on the pilot project’s performance 
and cost. Since this is a new system, there is an expectation that the installation of 
the first 20 sensors will take more time than additional sensor installations.   
 
 



c) If not, can clarification be provided as to the number of anticipated sensors to be 
developed and delivered by year?  Additional phases will be scheduled based on the 
lessons learned from the installation of the first 20 sensors. 
 
 

d) If the intent is to split the total number of sensors unevenly over the span of 5 years, 
then we request that the cap on escalation of 3% from the total cost of each 
previous year’s costs be removed as a factor.   
We will remove this from the RFP and contract. 
 

e) Will there be a guaranteed minimum number of sensors to be delivered?  
No 

 
25) Is there a defined expectation of when a “fully functional system” should be established?  

No, vendors should provide a timeline based on their experience. The contract can be 
renewed for multiple years if necessary. 


